

# Survey&Report

(i) Guide – GDPR and Clean-up

SCANDINIMAN BUSINESS CERTIFICATION ISO 27001

Our company and our data centre are ISO 27001 certified and located in Sweden.

Contact us via form >>

info@artologik.com



\_ . .

Read more about Survey&Report >>

Pricing >>





## Table of contents

GDPR – Personal data in Artologik Survey&Report	3
Personal data stored in Survey&Report	3
Users	3
Consent	3
Finding and exporting information about a user	4
Removing or anonymising users	6
Automatic removal of idle users	7
Respondents	8
Consent	9
Find and export information about a respondent	
Removing or anonymizing respondents	11
Removal of respondents from surveys in the recycle bin	
Surveys	13
Consent	
Anonymising surveys	
Automated clean-up	17
Custom automation	
Add automation	
Add step	
Conditions	17
Actions	
Combine multiple automations	
Survey automation	
Data clean-up	
Survey clean-up in the recycle bin	
Paper surveys	21
Email	21
Logs clean-up	21



## GDPR - Personal data in Artologik Survey&Report

This document contains recommendations on how to work in Survey&Report in accordance with the GDPR.

#### Personal data stored in Survey&Report

In Survey&Report, personal data is stored in the following places:

- User database
- Users linked to user groups, surveys and reports
- Respondent database
- Respondents linked to surveys (survey-specific respondents)
- Survey responses
- Emails sent and received

#### Users

To work in Survey&Report, a person must be added as a user. It's possible to store the following information in the user profile:

- Display name
- First name
- Last name
- Email
- Number of active surveys
- Organisation
- Username
- Password
- User group(s)
- Respondent filter

We recommend entering as little information as possible in the user profile. The only mandatory fields are *Username* and *Password*. To be allowed to work in the system, the user must also have a connection to at least one user group. For clarity, it is advisable to enter *First name* and *Last name*, but we recommend leaving the other fields blank.

Besides data stored in the user database, the system also stores information on which surveys, survey templates and reports the user has created and is linked to.

Finally, log information is stored to show the user's activities, for example when the user has logged in and in which surveys and reports the user has saved changes.

#### Consent

Typically, users are created in the system by an administrator. You do this under *Administration > System > Users*, via the *New user* button, from an import file or via LDAP.

To remind the administrator that it is necessary to obtain the user's consent, you can display a form with a reminder when the administrator clicks on the *New user* button.

If a user logs into Survey&Report for the first time via Windows authentication or SAML, the system automatically adds the user. In this case, you can display a form that the user must agree to before being added as a user.

You create these consent forms in the *Templates* > *Consent forms* > *Consent - Add user* and *Templates* > *Consent forms* > *Consent - User* menus, respectively. You can edit an existing form by clicking on it in the left part of the page, create a copy of an existing form by clicking on the *Copy form* button in the form's edit mode or create a new





form by clicking on the *Add form* button. You can translate the form into another active language by selecting that language via the *Language* button in the form edit mode.

<b>↓</b> III Back	Save	Copy form	Lang Eng	Juage	R	Ū emove form												
Guidelines	to consider wh errors around price while the response around price where the adapted of the off off and the adapted of the off off and the second second of the adapted of the off off and the adapted of the off off adapted of the adapted of the off of the off off adapted of the adapted of the off of the off of the off off off off off off the off off off off off off off off off of	ten saving personal da ber bedet ins begit terge hiltige here er dette dem genere Orige erste det er beren begin genere og er det ette ander erste det er være er det erste state er beste erste det er weder er de være statt kenn halte in det	ata senen na. nen spän sugar ser skulten nalmen stä	File	Edit ∂	View Inser Paragraph	t Form	at Tool: sans-seri	s Tat	ble	Opt		~	A	~ 🧕	<u> </u>		
Impaint ritementan at man- Manarena at Jugala sud ioni començui allegano. Morté e en pano. Bengemitino edu Jugalatino. Bengla attalia processi i latarati seres ne pe Caralitino ensineazio silito e Posce inno. Egala, alleget i Nollo serematis arbitude sa	Elizer resoulars, lokaris an High et ladioi, tandis, Marcena, lengue ad respar les. Galogar sola rens, p adats, dere reinembalan, suglit, flerieruget, Marchaer sid delter try alora alsparenes, brigflit ei Jasis, piny, al Insidari wer firflass as. Do	in a suggine an observ. verdensite below soft katter, Nadio handed. Monets analise of dotters cell aren't informations, annumenar-und real. We knownlow adjustate risms, sit desparse areas or got par- per letter of linkits. Zangerschem andres in reliefen kapitat pri Nadion known review, insults of real send, withight a press. Sudfish Improduit passares. Laters (passes differ sl.)	dal al lansando, sun no. Dala trou mallo, anemali, l'anno,	в	Ι	≡ ≡ ₹	∎	:≡ ~	E	~ ₫	ž	S	\$					
samenieke salipisting eli. portospare in avie alienta ner eist eudersania, seita Prandike seni étan anna	Dah kelantis, lefki gati saleamanne ques sil anné digrétatio meso proser negar regel, naños entiro. Ourabilor l	opal, elle parte deltario quare, tradición veden sell n. Nexpredicto Marcilloral est, ar efficien esdecalism effect hepit, eleverentere qui croix si, estimanda hiter	l sá skilov. Navna no. úl. Anorozar rílis senia	G	uid	elines t	о со	nsid	er١	whe	n sa	avir	ng p	oers	on	al	dat	a

To enable the display of the consent form, go to *Administration > Personal data > Consent settings* and select *Enabled* under *Consent - Add user* or *Consent - User*. You can also choose which form to use if you have created several.

Consent - User
Enabled
Consent form
Personal data De kanner ne al Bigger. Il von anderden i Enrerytellerjert ich dro perumagegilter konner all spane. Lanne pean alder of anni, annacheden i Enrerytellerjert ich dro perumagegilter konner all spane. Lanne pean alder of anni, annacheden algistung ell. Vesiliaden hendert dass begid temper histoger. Proze as senas na Pellerberger national dat ner reger sorralls, peda Mansenas daglina ultiters pr
Consent - Add user
Enabled
Consent form
Guidelines to consider when saving personal data University personal data to the second secon

#### Finding and exporting information about a user

Under *Administration* > *Personal data* > *Personal data report* authorised users can search for users and export their personal data. You assign *Personal data report* permissions at the user group level.

In the search field at the top of the page, you can type all or part of a search term and click the *Search* button. The search includes the following fields:

- Display name
- First name
- Last name
- Email
- Username





If you want to search specifically in one of the fields, First name, Last name, Email or User name, click on the 🛒

button next to the

۹ button.

All users matching your search are listed under the heading *Users*. Select the checkbox next to the desired user(s). Decide what information to include in the report:

- Created surveys
- Assigned surveys
- Reports
- User activity

Then click on the Generate Report button.

In the report, each user's data is displayed under the heading *Personal data in Survey&Report*. Firstly, you see the user's *User details*, along with the date and time of the user's creation.

Personal data in Survey&Report								
User details								
Display name	Username							
John Smith	john							
First name	<b>Last name</b>							
John	Smith							
Email stefan.bergwall@artisan.se	Street address							
Zip code	City							
Country 	Phone number							
Mobile phone	Created							
	26/08/2021 10:59							

Secondly, the user surveys, survey templates and reports are listed under the following headings:

- Your surveys (surveys created by the user)
- Your survey templates (survey templates created by the user)
- Your assigned surveys (surveys to which the user has been assigned as an authorised user)
- Your assigned survey templates (survey templates the user has been linked to under Users linked to survey)
- Your reports (reports and predefined reports created by the user)
- Your assigned reports (reports the user is connected to as a report reader)

The following information is listed:

Surveys:

Survey ID

Survey&Report



- Survey name
- Status
- Survey category
- Survey type (Respondent or Public survey)
- Name of the survey theme
- Published
- Survey URL
- Number of questions
- Number of pages
- Construction finished (Yes or No)
- Number of readers
- Respondents
- Responses
- Response rate
- Number of reports

Survey templates:

- Survey ID
- Survey name
- Status
- Survey category
- Survey type (Survey template)
- Name of the survey theme
- Number of questions
- Number of pages
- Number of (predefined) reports

Reports:

- Report ID
- Report name
- Created (date)
- Language
- Survey(s)
- Report URL

Finally, the user's activities are listed under the heading *Your activity*. The events are displayed grouped by date and session.

To export the information, click the *Export as PDF* button at the bottom of the page. If multiple users appear in the report, the system will create a PDF file for each user.

#### Removing or anonymising users

Under Administration > Users, you can check the box next to one or more users and click the *Remove* button.

After clicking this button, you can choose one of the following options:

- *Inactive*: the user will disappear from the user administration and all listings of users in the application. However, the user's name will still be visible on surveys, survey templates and reports to which the user is connected, for example as the survey owner.
- *Remove*: The user will be removed completely. On surveys, survey templates and reports to which the user is connected, "---" will appear instead of the name.





Users can also be inactivated or removed from the *Personal data report* under the *Personal data* menu. See the *Finding and exporting information about a user* section above for details on how to search for users to display in the report. In the report search results, you can check the box next to one or more users and click the *Delete* button. You will then be given the same two options as described above.

#### Automatic removal of idle users

If you want to automatically remove or inactivate users who haven't been active in the system for a long time, you can activate the *Automated removal of idle users* setting under *Administration > System > Automation*.

The service will run once a day at the time you specify in the Run every day at field.

Under *Type of removal*, you select how the removal shall be done. Whichever option is selected, the user will no longer be able to log in. The user will also disappear from all lists of users in the program and, for example, will no longer be able to be selected as an authorised user on a survey. The difference between the options lies in whether the user's name will continue to be visible on surveys, for example, where the user was the owner or authorised user at the time of removal.

- Inactivate: The user's name will remain visible (the user is still there, by name, in the database).
- *Inactivate and anonymise*: Instead of the user's name, it will say [Removed user] (the user is still in the database, but their name has been cleared).
- *Delete*: The place where the user's name used to appear will be blank (the user no longer exists in the database).

#### Also, select Number of days of idleness required to consider a user inactive.

You can run the service manually by clicking on the *Run task* button. However, you can only do this when the automatic service is active.

Automated removal of idle users ()	<b>~</b>
Run every day at	
22:30	
Type of removal	
Inactivate and anonymise	•
Number of days of idleness required to consider a user inactive	
<b>-</b> 180 <b>+</b>	
Scheduled every day Last run: 13/04/2025 22:30 Next run: 14/04/2025 22:30	





#### Respondents

When creating or importing respondents in Survey&Report, you can choose to add them as survey-specific respondents (linked to the survey only) or as database respondents (stored in the system-wide respondent database). We recommend that you store respondents in the respondent database only if you have specific reasons to do so, for example if you have respondents linked to multiple surveys that need to be able to log in to all surveys with the same username and password. Under *Administration > Respondents > Settings*, you can decide whether to allow database respondents and (if database respondents are allowed) to make survey-specific respondents the *Default selection*.

Add and import respondents	
Allow database respondents ()	<ul> <li>Image: A start of the start of</li></ul>
Default selection	
Survey-specific	-

You can store the following information in the respondent data:

- First name
- Last name
- Organisation
- Email
- Street address
- Zip code
- City
- Country
- Phone number
- Mobile phone number
- Language
- Respondent type
- Respondent owner (if this function has been activated)
- User name
- Password
- Respondent properties
- Respondent categories

We recommend entering only the information you consider necessary in the respondent data and leaving the other fields blank. The only mandatory fields are *Username* and *Password*. In addition, each respondent must have a unique combination of *Key fields*. You determine the Key fields in the *Administration* > *Respondents* > *Settings* menu.





Respondent key fields	
Username	×
First name	
Last name	
Organisation	×
Email	
Language	×

In addition to the information stored in the respondent data, information is also stored on which survey (or surveys, if it is a database respondent) the respondent is linked to, what emails have been sent to the respondent and what answers the respondent has given to the survey (assuming the survey is non-anonymous).

#### Consent

Respondents are added to a survey under the menu *Survey > Distribution > Respondents*. Respondents are added one at a time via the *Add respondent* button or imported via the *Import respondents* button (from the respondent database, another survey, a mailing list, an import file, or via LDAP). The *Import as Survey Specific* setting determines whether respondents are added to the survey only (enable the setting) or also to the system-wide respondent database (disable the setting).



You can also create Database respondents directly in the Administration > Respondents menu. There, you can add respondents via the Add Respondent button or the Import Respondents button (from an import file or via LDAP).

To remind the user adding the respondents that consent is required, you can display a form informing them of this when the user clicks on one of the *Add respondent* or *Import respondents* buttons. This consent form is created in the *Templates > Consent forms > Consent - Add respondent* menu. You can edit an existing form by clicking on it in the left part of the page, create a copy of an existing form by clicking on the *Copy form* button in the form's edit mode or create a new form by clicking on the *Add form* button. You can translate the form into another active language by selecting that language via the *Language* button in the form edit mode.



To enable the display of the consent form, go to *Administration > Personal data > Consent settings* and select *Enabled* under *Consent - Add respondent*. There you can also choose which form to use if you have created several.





Consent - Add respondent	
Enabled	<b>~</b>
Consent form	
Guidelines to consider when saving personal data Leren (war date of and, senador adjuding dl. Vestilador hendrei das heqdi keyer hitigan. Pase as senas na Paterienzer notional dat ner respe senado pola. Manema dagtes ultrar pr Manema ultgale vel tote toteto isado. Maneman keyer withis bits officiado. Natis tabli. Mani a adee dat a senaged adjuan. Moti vel respe ter Gologar ade new, patrim vi and officer vi Male remails whited super, ul instaler on felso as. Dense baths ingredit paramer. Leren (same date of and, senador dat adjuant) ditor. Data Materi, bits opis notare amengal, vitit para date	-

#### Find and export information about a respondent

In the menu *Administration > Personal data > Personal data report*, authorised users can search for respondents and export their personal data. Personal Data Report permissions are assigned at the user group level.

In the search field at the top of the page, you can type all or part of a search term and click on the Search button. The search will be done in the following fields:

- First name
- Last name
- Organisation
- Email
- User name
- Respondent properties
- Respondent categories

If you want to search specifically in one of the fields, First name, Last name, Email or User name, you can click on the

button next to the Search button.

All respondents matching your search are listed under the heading *Respondents*. Check the box next to the desired respondent(s). Decide what information to include in the report:

- Response status (whether the respondent has responded or not)
- Submitted answers

Then click on the Generate report button.

In the report, each respondent's details are displayed under the heading *Personal data in Survey&Report*. First, the user's *Respondent details* are displayed. If the respondent is a database respondent, the date and time when the respondent was created are displayed.



Personal data in Survey&Report						
<b>Username</b> johnsmith						
Last name Smith						
Street address						
City 						
Phone number						
Created 04/11/2020 11:26						

The surveys to which the respondent is connected to are then displayed. The following survey information is listed:

- Survey ID
- Survey name
- Published
- Survey URL
- Status (whether the respondent has responded or not)
- Responses (the responses submitted)

To export the information, click the *Export as PDF* button at the bottom of the page. If multiple respondents appear in the report, a PDF file will be created for each respondent.

#### Removing or anonymizing respondents

From the menu *Survey > Distribution > Respondents* on a survey, you can remove respondents from the survey by ticking the checkbox next to them and clicking the *Remove respondents* button. Select the *Remove from survey* option. If you select the *Also remove from database* checkbox, any database respondents not linked to any other survey will simultaneously be removed from the respondent database. Click OK to confirm. Depending on the survey status, the respondent's answers and some respondent data may not be deleted along with the respondent:

- If the survey has the status *Construction* or *Active*, all respondent data is deleted.
- If the survey has the status *Active*, the respondent's answers are deleted, provided the survey is not anonymous. For anonymous surveys, responses are not deleted because the software does not know which response is linked to which respondent.
- If the survey has the status Closed or Archived, and the respondent has not responded, all respondent data is deleted.
- If the survey has the status *Closed* or *Archived*, and the respondent has answered, the respondent's answer (and display name, if the *Individual answers* variable is allowed on the survey) will remain on the survey. If respondent categories have been connected to the survey, the respondent's category values will also remain on the survey.





Respondents can also be inactivated or removed from the *Personal data report* under *Administration > Personal data*. See the *Finding and exporting respondent information* section above for information on how to search for respondents to display in the report. In the report search results, you can check the box next to one or more respondents and click the *Delete* button. You will then have these two options:

- Inactivate: The respondents and their answers will remain in the system, but their names will be replaced by
  "--- ", and all other respondent data, except respondent category values, will be cleared. Database
  respondents will no longer be visible in the Administration > Respondents menu or when respondents are
  connected to a survey via the From Respondent Database tab.
- Remove: The system will completely remove respondents and all their respondent data. Note that their
  responses will also be deleted, regardless of the status of the surveys they are connected to. Thus, this
  option will affect these surveys' results and response rates. The system will only keep responses given on
  anonymous surveys.

You can also anonymise respondents at the survey level. See the Anonymising surveys section below.

Database respondents who are not connected to any survey can be removed from the respondent database via the

Administration > Respondents menu. List these respondents by clicking on the \_\_\_\_\_\_ button and activate the

setting *Only respondents not connected to any survey*. Then click the **button**. Select the checkboxes next to the desired respondents and click on the *Remove respondent* button.

#### Removal of respondents from surveys in the recycle bin

Surveys that are removed end up in a recycle bin. Under *Administration > Survey automation* and the *Recycle bin* heading, you can activate a service, *Delete respondents task*, which deletes any respondents on the surveys in the recycle bin.

Under *Run every day at*, specify the time of the day the cleaning should take place. Also, define after how many days this should happen.





#### Surveys

In the sections *Anonymise surveys* and *Remove surveys* below, you can read about automated functions that perform actions on surveys with the status *Closed* or *Archived*. If you wish to use these features, we recommend that you put in place procedures to close and archive surveys after they are completed.

A survey's status can be changed from its dashboard page via the *Close survey* shortcut on ongoing surveys and the *Archive survey* shortcut on closed surveys.

You can also change the status of several surveys simultaneously via the menu Survey > Manage surveys. By clicking

on the \_\_\_\_\_ button, you can search for surveys using different search criteria, such as the survey Status. Click on

the button to list all surveys that match your search. In the toolbar above the list, you have access to the following buttons:

- Close surveys (applies only to ongoing surveys)
- Postpone anonymisation (see Anonymise surveys below)
- Anonymise (see Anonymising surveys below)
- Archive surveys (applies only to closed surveys)
- *Restore from the archive* (applies only to archived surveys)

You can close or activate several surveys simultaneously by ticking the checkboxes next to the desired surveys and clicking on the *Close surveys* and *Archive surveys* buttons at the bottom of the page.

#### Consent

You can show respondents a consent form before they complete the survey. To complete the survey, the respondent must click on an "I agree" button to continue the survey. If the respondent clicks on the "I refuse consent" button, a "Consent refused" page will be displayed, and the respondent will have the status of *Unregistered* on the survey. The default texts for the buttons are determined under *Administration > Surveys > Translate survey texts*. Still, you can change the texts at the survey level under *Survey > Construction > Content > Survey texts* button *> Custom texts*.



The consent form and the "Consent refused" page are created in the *Templates > Consent forms > Consent - Survey* and *Templates > Consent form > Consent refused - Survey* menus. You can edit an existing form by clicking on it in the left part of the page, create a copy of an existing form by clicking on the *Copy form* button in the form's edit mode or create a new form by clicking on the *Add form* button. You can translate the form into another active language by selecting that language via the *Language* button in the form edit mode.



Guide – GDPR and Clean-up



<b>H</b> III Back	Save	Copy form	Langu	uage lish	OI	ganisation access	Remov	j e form						
Consent w	hen answering a	SUIVEY		File	Edit	View Inse	rt Forma	it Tools	Table					
panaeren. Dahapan maarin di sandeningan. Manaeran ini lanke panae, nina milai da sehimala reas. Aneware ngal ial mila reas. mil sali hars, boj	ikke, närner opis ongar is, särepar mad nyar kopis ved renks, vesälasken, arsan etti häresken etti Massanen käresken (Igada regestän, kasista rista a. vesälasken gjot ohenerikan at sam. Ellare roomalis	nacharlas Dade voldajni ali rhane sori dagdane Igala shikano. Nadar sonatorna dagdane Igala shikano. Nadar sonatorna oli saqatera Integre mus restitu, koren. Nadaren m, helanelte an tergilinan, saqattu an shiren.		رب B	(7 I	Paragraph	= =	sans-serif		0pt	ß	~ []	<u>A</u> ~ <u>*</u> ~	
				Co	ons	ent wh	en ai	nswe	ring a	sur	vey			

To enable the display of the consent form, go to *Administration > Personal data > Consent settings* and select *Enabled* under *Consent - Survey*. There you can also choose which form and "Consent refused page" to use by default if you have created several.

In the Survey default status, you can choose from these options:

- Disabled: The Ask for consent setting will be available in the survey settings and disabled by default.
- Enabled: The Ask for consent setting will be available in the survey settings and enabled by default.
- Forced enabled for all surveys: The Ask for consent setting will be enabled in the survey settings on all surveys and cannot be changed at the survey level.

Consent - Survey	
Enabled	<b>~</b>
Survey default status 🕦	
Disabled	•
Consent form	
Consent when answering a survey Lower lower date of anoth, somewhere adjusting off. Vestilladors breaked from the post hillipse. Postar a none as Politeringer industify and adjust in region smalling profit Management digities adjusted and the origin and adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the origin adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the politic date of a substrate of the origin adjust in the origin adjust in the politic date of the origin adjust in the origin adjust in the politic date of the origin adjust in the or	•
Consent refused page	
You have refused consent Lines invariant devine adjusted of the Mathematical International States International St	•

Under the menu *Survey* > *Construction* > *Settings*, you can choose which *Consent form* and *Message shown when consent is refused* to use.





Consent		
Ask for consent		<b>~</b>
Consent form		
Consent when answering a survey Loren poor date of and, constantial adjusting all. Writiliate formation may logical import hittigen Process as once in Policienting in relational data for import investigation for the second data of the second	•	Ø
Message shown when consent is refused		
Default	•	Ø

If you want to customise the form and the "Refused consent" message to fit your survey, choose one of the options in

the selection box instead	of the Default	option, ar	nd save. T	hen click or	n the 📶	button and	make the c	desired
changes.								

#### Anonymising surveys

Surveys with a status of *Closed* or *Archived* can be anonymised. When you anonymise a survey, all respondent data on the survey is cleared, except respondent category values, but all responses are kept.

You can anonymise a survey from its dashboard page via the Anonymise shortcut.

If you want to be notified of surveys that have not yet been anonymised, you can activate the *Anonymisation warning* setting in the *Administration > Surveys > Settings* menu.

Specify how many days a survey must have been closed before the warning appears. Also, specify the number of days a survey must have been closed before a warning is shown if you use the *Postpone anonymisation* feature on a survey.

Anonymisation warning	<b>~</b>		
Number of days a survey must have been closed before a warning is shown			
- 180	+		
Number of days a warning will be postponed			
- 14	+		

The warning will appear at the top of the screen after a user has logged in.



Survey&Report



When clicking the *Show* button, all surveys that the user is authorised to see and that have not yet been anonymised are listed.

Close surveys Postpone anonymisation Anonymise	Archive surveys Restore from archive		
Search			୍ଡ ୧
Name +	<u>Status</u> ÷	<u>Survey type</u> ≑	<u>Answ</u>
✓ ACC1103	Closed Days since the survey was closed: 190	Public Not anonymised	24
✓ ANT1205	Closed Days since the survey was closed: 213	Respondent Not anonymised	18
✓ AOJ1010	Closed Days since the survey was closed: 213	Respondent Not anonymised	20

To make a survey anonymous, tick the box next to it and click on the *Anonymise* button. Suppose you click on the *Postpone anonymisation* button instead. In that case, the alert for this survey will be postponed for the number of days specified in the *Administration* > *Surveys* > *Settings* menu, see above. You can also simultaneously anonymise or postpone anonymisation for multiple surveys by selecting several or all checkboxes before clicking the *Anonymise* or *Postpone anonymisation* buttons.

The list is also available under the menu Survey > Manage surveys.

Click on the \_\_\_\_\_\_ button and activate the search criterion Show only surveys with anonymisation warning, and click

on the button to list all non-anonymised surveys that have been closed for longer than the number of days specified in the *Administration > Surveys > Settings* menu; see above.





### Automated clean-up

Due to the large number of created surveys in larger organisations, such as higher education institutions, the need to remove old surveys gradually arises. Below is a description of how you can automate the clean-up of old surveys in Survey&Report.

#### Custom automation

You set and activate this feature under *Administration* > *System* > *Custom automation*. For a detailed description, see the program help texts.

#### Add automation

Click on the *Add automation* button and *Name* the automation. To run the automation, you must set it to *Enabled*. However, wait to do this until you have finished all the automation settings.

Under *Time settings*, you specify how often the automation should run and at what time it should start. For example, if you want the clean-up to take place every night at 02:00, use this setting:

✓ Time settings Interval					
Days					-
Start time		Recur every			
02:00	0	- 1	+	days	

#### Add step

Under *Steps to perform*, click on the *Add step* button and select the option *Manage surveys* (if you have the SR-Panel plugin, the option *Manage panel members* is also available).

The automation step for *Manage surveys* is defined as a condition for which surveys should be affected and one or more actions that should be performed on these surveys.

#### Conditions

When you click the *Edit conditions* button, a window opens where you define the condition. You can create a simple condition with a single selection criterion and advanced conditions where you combine several criteria.

In the open window, start by clicking *Select type of condition* to set the first condition. You can base your condition on, among other things, the survey status, the survey template from which it was created, whether the survey has no owner or authorised users, and how long it has been closed/archived/placed in the recycle bin.

To add another condition, click on the ricon. You can also click on the 📅 button to add a group of conditions within a condition. You can do this if you want an AND relationship between some conditions and an OR relationship between others.

Once you have added the second condition, select the desired option in the selection box above the conditions:

- All of (include) Include surveys matching all conditions
- Is either (include) Include surveys matching any of the conditions
- All of (exclude) Exclude surveys matching all conditions
- Is either (exclude) Exclude surveys matching any of the conditions





In the example below, All of (include) is selected at the top of the main condition. The setting means an AND relationship between the initial condition 'Closed for at least 730 days' and the subsequent group. Is either (include) is selected in the group of conditions, which means an OR relationship is applied within the group. You can thus read the full condition as:

"Surveys closed for at least 730 days"

#### AND

"Surveys based on the Course Evaluation survey template" OR "Surveys belonging to the Course Evaluation survey category"

Edit condition		2 🗆 😣
If All of (include)	Add group of conditions d single condition 730	+ days
And If Is either (include)	te	Group of conditions
Or Survey category Course Evaluation		✓ 位
		Save Cancel

#### Actions

Once you have set the condition, it is time to decide what will happen to the surveys that fulfil it. Click on the *Add action* button and select one of the following options:

- Archive surveys: Surveys with the status Closed will get the status Archived.
- Restore surveys from the archive: Surveys with the status Archived will get the status Closed
- Move surveys to recycle bin
- Restore surveys from recycle bin
- Delete surveys permanently: The surveys will not be able to be restored

Please note that the actions *Move surveys to recycle bin* and *Delete surveys permanently* will not be performed on surveys with the status *Active*.

✓ Actions		
Ū	Move surveys to recycle bin Matching surveys will be moved to the recycle bin	Ū
	Add action	

Once both conditions and actions are defined, click *Save* in the *Edit step* window and on the *Custom automation* page.





#### Combine multiple automations

To avoid clearing surveys that someone else wants to keep, you can create an automation that puts surveys in the recycle bin and another that permanently deletes them after they have been in the recycle bin for a certain amount of time. By doing so, you can let users discover that their surveys have been moved to the recycle bin, where the user can restore them.

Edit step	2		⊗
✓ Condition Surveys that have been archived for at least 30 days			
	🖉 Edit cor	ndition	
✓ Actions Delete surveys permanently		Ũ	
Add action			
	Save	Cance	el





#### Survey automation

In addition to the custom automation described above, where you can decide which surveys should be affected and what should happen to them, activating specific services for clearing archived surveys, surveys in the recycle bin and/or their respondents is possible. You can find the setting under *Administration > Surveys > Survey automation*.

#### Data clean-up

The *Data clean-up* feature allows you to automate permanently deleting all archived surveys during a specific period. When the survey is deleted, all reports based on it, survey-specific respondents, and respondents in the database that were only connected to this survey are also deleted.

To use this feature, activate the *Clean-up task* and specify the time for the service to run and the number of days a survey shall be in the archive before being deleted in the automatic data clean-up.

Data clean-up	
Clean-up task	
Run every day at	
06:00	
Delete surveys archived during more than (days)	
<b>-</b> 730 <b>+</b>	

#### Survey clean-up in the recycle bin

Deleted surveys are placed in a recycle bin. Under the *Recycle bin* heading on the *Survey automation* page, you can enable the *Delete surveys task* to automate the permanent deletion of surveys in the Recycle bin.

Respondents to these surveys are deleted simultaneously as the survey is permanently deleted. If, for example, for GDPR reasons, you want to delete only the respondents or delete them earlier than the surveys, activate the *Delete respondent task*.

Thus, the services are activated separately, and you decide separately for each service how many days the survey shall be in the recycle bin to be affected by the service. However, the setting for the time of day when the services shall be performed is common to both services.

Recycle bin			
Run every day at			
06:00			
Delete respondents task			
Delete respondents from surveys in recy- cle bin after (days)	Respondents from 0 survey(s) will be deleted		
<b>-</b> 365 <b>+</b>			
Delete surveys task			
Permanently delete surveys in the recycle bin after (days)	118 survey(s) will be deleted		
- 730 +			





#### Paper surveys

Under the *Survey > Distribution > Paper survey* menu on a survey, you can activate the setting *Delete all uploaded PDF files on survey close*. All PDF files containing scanned paper surveys uploaded to the survey will then be deleted automatically when the survey is closed.

#### Email

Emails sent from a survey are automatically anonymised when the survey is anonymised and automatically deleted when the survey is deleted.

You can delete incoming emails manually from the *Administration > Email > Email inbox*. Select the checkbox next to the emails you want to delete, and click the *Remove emails* button. Select the next email account in the selection box and repeat the procedure if you have multiple email accounts.

#### Logs clean-up

On the Application logs tab, under *Administration* > *System* > *Logs,* you will find logs created in the program, e.g. when the system cannot execute commands or errors occur.

Under the *Settings tab*, the recommendation is to enable automatic deletion after the desired number of days of the following:

- Activity logs: These are what the users have done in the program. They are visible in the Personal Data Report.
- Login history: When users have logged in. It is only visible in the program database.
- Application logs: Logs are visible in the Application Logs tab.

Under *Data compliance*, you can also choose to enable masking of personally identifiable information and security sensitive data, such as usernames, in the logs. Choose from these methods:

- Hash ("John" becomes, e.g. "6J+0")
- Delete ("John" becomes "[REDACTED]")
- *Mask* ("John" becomes "J\*\*\*")

Data compliance	Log retention
Redaction of personally identifiable information (PII) 6	Enable automatic removal of activity logs
Hash ("John" -> "6J+0")	Keep activity logs for (days)
Redaction of security sensitive data <b>(</b> )	- 180 +
Remove ( "John" -> "[REDACTED]")	Enable automatic removal of login history logs
	Keep login history logs for (days)
	- 180 <b>+</b>
	Enable automatic removal of application logs
	Keep application logs for (days)
	- 180 <b>+</b>